Ethics and the A76 Process

     Revised 7 June 2000
By: Judy Conlow, General Counsel and

CAPT Tom Taylor, Staff Judge Advocate

Commander, Navy Region Northwest

The following guide is meant to simplify the ethics issues raised by the A76 process.  No chart or diagram can answer all the questions that might arise, but we hope these materials will help you understand the process better.
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In the A76 arena, ethics issues involve the “right of first refusal” (more about that later), conflict of interest laws, and special laws designed to keep the federal procurement system fair and unbiased.  We’ve tried to address all of these concerns in the materials that follow.

While the A76 process is complicated and lengthy, it can be broken into two basic phases: the study phase and the procurement phase.  The process starts with study phase and ends with the procurement phase, but in the interim, both phases operate simultaneously.  (Figure 1) 

Ethics issues tend to arise toward the end of the study phase and increase in intensity during the procurement phase.  (Figures 2 & 3)  This is because the first few steps in the process involve data collection.  There are no restrictions on data collection.  You can provide information about your current job.  The more information prospective commercial bidders have, however, the more competitive their proposals will be.  In addition, as the process continues sensitive information will be developed which must be protected.  

What about the “right of first refusal”?  What is it and what does it mean to you?  If the decision is made to contract out a function, the contract will include a provision requiring the contractor to first offer employment openings to the affected federal employees for positions that they are qualified.  This is commonly known as the “right of first refusal.”  Don’t confuse the “right of first refusal” with employment negotiations or job offers made during the A-76 study.  Until the decision is made to either retain the function in-house or contract it out, employment discussions with potentially interested contractors raise 


potential conflicts of interests and should be

disclosed.  The right of first refusal, on the other hand, does not even apply until after the A-76 process is complete and the ultimate decision is made to contract out the function.  Therefore 

“right of first refusal” is not considered to be “seeking employment.”  Nor does it create the appearance of a conflict of interest.  As your role in the A76 process may limit your ability to exercise a right of first refusal, however, it is important for you to understand your role in the A76 process.

By the way … in conducting an A-76 study, it is management’s responsibility to place employees in roles that do not raise conflicts of interests.  But we need your help.  If you feel that you have been placed in a role that presents a conflict, contact your supervisor or team leader.

.

The Study Phase of the A76 Process


Your Role in the A76 Process



If you take part in:
Developing Performance Work Statement (PWS) or Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan (QASP)

Developing the Management Plan (MP) (including the drafting of the Most Efficient Organization (MEO) and Technical Performance Plan (TPP)) or the In-House Cost Estimate
Certification of the MP (including approval of the MEO and IHCE)
Independent Review Officer (IRO)

What happens to your “right of first refusal”?
Your right of first refusal should not be in jeopardy.
Your right of first refusal should not be in jeopardy.
OPNAVINST 4860.7C, 7 JUN 99, requires the MP to be certified by “appropriate commander.”  With respect to A-76 studies conducted by Navy Region Northwest, MPs will normally be certified by the Commander, Navy Region Northwest. 

No “right of first refusal” is at issue.


The complete PWS, QASP, & MP are forwarded to the IRO.  The IRO should be from outside the command whose functions are being studied.

No “right of first refusal” is at issue.

What are the potential conflicts?
Generally, any employee may freely participate at this stage.

Work performed at this stage does not usually involve decisions that would have a special or individual effect on the salary or benefits of an employee.

All participants must report all contacts made with defense contractors and prospective bidders if the possibility of future contractor employment was discussed or an application for employment has been provided to the contractor.
Generally, any employee may freely participate at this stage.

Work performed at this stage does not usually involve decisions that would have a special or individual effect on the salary or benefits of an employee.

All participants must report all contacts made with defense contractors and prospective bidders if the possibility of future contractor employment was discussed or an application for employment has been provided to the contractor.


Only individuals from outside the function being studied should perform this function.

All the restrictions noted for the SSEB apply.   See Figure 3
Only individuals from outside the function being studied should sit on this team. 

All the restrictions noted for the SSEB apply.  See Figure 3

Can I participate in other areas?
You may also participate in the development of the Management Plan (MP).
You may also participate in the development of the PWS and QASP.


The certifying commander should not participate in any other A76 function. 

The certifying commander may not by the SSA.
The IRO should only have one role and should not participate in any other A76 function.

























Figure 2

The Procurement Phase of the A76 Process


Your Role in the A76 Process



If you take part in:
Independent Government Estimate (IGE) 
Technical Evaluation Team (reports to the SSEB)
Financial EvaluationTeam

(reports to the SSEB)
Source Selection Evaluation Board
Source Selection Authority

What happens to your “right of first refusal”?
This role may jeopardize your right of first refusal, due to conflicts of interest.


The leader of the team loses any right of first refusal.

Being a member of the team jeopardizes your right of first refusal.
The leader of the team loses any right of first refusal.

Being a member of the team jeopardizes your right of first refusal.
Members of SSEB should be from outside the function being studied.  No “right of first refusal” should be at issue.


Members of SSA must be from outside the function being studied.   No “right of first refusal” is at issue.

What are the potential conflicts?
While not required, individuals from outside the function being studied should sit on this team.

 
Individuals from outside the function being studied should sit on this team.

Report all contacts made with contractors and prospective bidders if the possibility of future employment was discussed or an application for employment has been provided to the contractor.

If you wish to preserve your right of first refusal, disqualification from this role will be necessary. 

Members of the Technical Evaluation Team are prohibited from later making a communication or appearance on behalf of the contractor with  the intent to influence the Government on any matter involving the contractor that the former employee participated in personally and substantially.

For the Technical Evaluation team leader, all the restrictions noted for the SSEB apply.


Individuals from outside the function being studied should sit on this team.

Report all contacts made with contractors and prospective bidders if the possibility of future employment was discussed or an application for employment has been provided to the contractor.

If you wish to preserve your right of first refusal, disqualification from this role will be necessary. 

Members of the Financial Team are prohibited from later making a communication or appearance on behalf of the contractor with  the intent to influence the Government on any matter involving the contractor that the former employee participated in personally and substantially. 

For the Financial Evaluation team leader, all the restrictions noted for the SSEB apply.
Only individuals from outside the function being studied should sit on this team.

Report all contacts made with contractors and prospective bidders if the possibility of future employment was discussed or an application for employment has been provided to the contractor.

The Procurement Integrity Act prohibits members of the SSEB from working for the Contractor for 1 year from the end of their participation in the source selection, if the contract is worth >$10 million.

Members of the SSEB are prohibited from later making a communication or appearance on behalf of the contractor with the intent to influence the Government on any matter involving the contractor that the former employee participated in personally and substantially.


Only individuals from outside the function being studied should sit on this team. 

All the restrictions noted for the SSEB apply.

Can I participate in other areas?
You may also participate in the PWS.

You should not participate in the MP, including the MEO or the In-House CE.
While unlikely to be chosen for this role, you may participate on the PWS.

You may NOT participate in the MP, approval of the MEO, IGE, TPP or the In-House CE.
While unlikely to be chosen for this role, you may participate on the PWS.

You may NOT participate in the MP, approval of the MEO, IGE, TPP, or the In-House CE.
While unlikely to be chosen for this role, you may participate on the PWS.

You may NOT participate in MP, approval of the MEO, the development of the In-house CE, the IGE, or the TPP
The SSA should only have one role and should not participate in any other A76 function.

Figure 3






